
Summons to Meeting

Friday 14 September 2018

Audit Committee
Monday 24 September 2018, 2.00 pm

Council Chamber - Allerdale House, Workington
Membership:

Councillor Mary Bainbridge (Chair) Councillor Neil Schofield (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor John Colhoun
Councillor John Cook Councillor Duncan Fairbairn
Councillor Billy Miskelly

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Gayle Roach on 01900 702502.

Agenda
1. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 6)

To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 27 July 2018.

2. Apologies for Absence  

3. Declaration of Interests  
Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

4. Questions  
To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00 pm, 2 working days before the meeting.

5. Internal Audit report Quarter One 2018/19  (Pages 7 - 52)

6. Annual Audit Letter 2017/18  (Pages 53 - 62)

7. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update  (Pages 63 - 76)

Page 1



Chief Executive

Date of Next Meeting:

Monday 26 November 2018, 2.00 pm
Allerdale House, Workington

Page 2



At a meeting of the Audit Committee held in Council Chamber - Allerdale House, 
Workington on Friday 27 July 2018 at 2.00 pm

Members

Councillor Mary Bainbridge (Chair) Councillor Neil Schofield (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor John Colhoun
Councillor Anthony Markley Councillor Billy Miskelly

Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor John Cook and Councillor 
Duncan Fairbairn

Staff Present

B Carlin, D Devine, W Johnston, B Lennox and C Nicholson

Also Present

J Farrar and R McGahon

122. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 7 June 2018 were signed as a correct 
record.

123. Declaration of Interests 

None declared.

124. Questions 

None received.

125. Treasury Management Operation Annual Report 2017/18 

The Financial Services Manager submitted a report which sought to inform 
Members of the performance of the council’s treasury management activities 
during 2017/18, the effects of treasury management decisions and transactions 
executed in the past year and of compliance with its Treasury Management 
Policy.

The report summarised the following:

 The economy and interest rates
 Overall treasury position at 31 March 2018
 The strategy for 2017/18
 Borrowing requirement
 Borrowing rates
 Borrowing activity during 2017/18
 Investment rates
 Investment outturn for 2017/18

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 Prudential and Treasury Indicators
 Other matters arising during 2017/18

Members noted the contents of the report.

Recommended

That Council be requested to agree that the contents of the report be noted.

126. Final Annual Governance Statement 2017/18 

The Head of Governance and Monitoring Officer submitted a report which set 
out the Council’s Annual Governance Statement for 2017/18, which was 
required to meet the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

There were no significant governance issues identified in the Annual 
Governance Statement 2017/18.

Members approved the Annual Governance Statement 2017/18.

Resolved

That the Annual Governance Statement 2017/18 be approved.

127. Statement of Accounts 2017/18 

In accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the Head of 
Financial Services submitted the Council’s 2017/18 Statement of Accounts for 
the Audit Committee’s consideration and approval.

The Statement of Accounts summarised the Council’s financial performance, 
financial position and cash flows for the financial year from 1 April 2017 to 31 
March 2018. 

The Group Accounts consolidated the financial statements of the Authority and 
its material interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

The Financial Services Manager provided members with a presentation on the 
Statement of Accounts designed to support the Committee’s consideration of 
the statements. The presentation included:

 an overview of the content of the narrative report
 an outline of the changes made to accounting policies and the major 

judgements made in applying accounting policies.
 addressing a series of challenge questions for each of core financial 

statements (comprehensive income and expenses statement, movement 
in reserves statement, balance sheet and cash flow statement) and 
supplementary statements (collection fund and group accounts), 
including providing explanations for significant year on year changes in 
the amounts reported in each of the core and supplementary financial 
statements.

Page 4



 confirming the consistency of the statement of accounts with other 
financial information presented to members.

 explaining the changes made to the unaudited Statements of Accounts 
since their publication. 

The Chair of the Audit Committee signed and dated the statement.

Resolved

That:

1. The Statement of Accounts 2017/18 be approved.
2. The Statement of Accounts 2017/18 be signed by the Chair of the Audit 

Committee.
3. Upon receipt of the signed audit opinion, the final Statement of Accounts 

2017/18 be published by the statutory deadline of 31 July 2018.

128. Audit Findings Report 

Grant Thornton submitted a findings report highlighting the key matters arising 
from the audit of the Council’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 
2018.

J Farrar, Grant Thornton presented Members with a summary of the report.

Members noted the report.

Agreed

That the contents of the report be noted.

129. Letter of Representation 2017/18 

The Head of Financial Services presented to members the Letter of 
Representation, made in connection with the audit of the council’s 2017/18 
Statement of Accounts.

Members approved the Letter of Representation.

The Audit Committee thanked the Financial Services team for their hard work.

Resolved

That:

a) The Letter of Representation 2017/18 be approved.
b) The Letter of Representation 2017/18 be signed by the s151 Officer on 

behalf of the Council.

The meeting closed at 3.20 pm

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 Allerdale Borough Council

Audit Committee - 24 September 2018

Assurance, Risk and Audit Report for the Quarter Ending 30 June 2018

The Reason for the Decision To inform the Committee of the work performed 
by the Assurance, Risk and Audit Team in the 
first quarter of the financial year 2018/19.

Summary of options considered N/A 

Recommendations That the report is accepted subject to any 
additional information that the committee may 
require.

Financial / Resource Implications As outlined in the report

Legal Implications Acceptance of this report has no legal 
implications.

Community Safety Implications Acceptance of this report has no community 
safety implications.

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

Acceptance of this report has no Health and 
Safety implications. Consideration should be 
given to the activities reported and how they 
contribute to the organisation’s Risk Management 
Framework

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

Equality is considered during the Assurance, Risk 
and Audit activities.

Wards Affected All

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

Acceptance of the Assurance, Risk and Audit 
Team’s work provides a direct and indirect 
contribution to the achievement of the Council’s 
priorities, in accordance with the Assurance, Risk 
and Audit Service Plan.

Is this a Key Decision No

Portfolio Holder Councillor Joan Ellis
(email: joan.ellis@allerdale.gov.uk)

Lead Officer Emma Thompson, Assurance, Risk and Audit 
Manager. 01900 702988
emma.thompson@allerdale.gov.uk

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



Report Implications (Please delete where applicable).

Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) N

Financial N Employment (internal) Y

Legal N Partnership N

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

Background papers: Assurance, Risk and Audit reports and working papers.

1 Introduction

1.1 This is the first progress report for the financial year 2018/19.

1.2 Items covered in this report are as follows:

 Performance against the 2018/19 plan
 Assurance and consultancy activities during the quarter
 Fraud work
  Assurance, Risk and Audit activity performance, 
 Quality Assurance and Improvement Program
 Agreed Action follow up, and
 Training and staffing.

2 Performance against the 2018/19 Audit Plan

2.1 Time Summary 

Activity Planned 
Days

Actual 
Days

Statutory Assurance Reviews 69 0
Assurance and Risk Support 15 0.84
Follow up and performance 15 7.09
Completion of 2017/18 reviews 35 40.44
Assurance Reviews 90 2.2
Democratic Representation 32 2.93
Corporate Support 135.5 34
Projects 25 8.51
Peer Review 5 5.74
Advice 10 0.37
Investigations 10 1.89
Fraud Activities 9 0.61
Risk Management Facilitation 10 0.41
Contingency 6 0
Total Audit Time 466.50 105.03
HR Management 40 20.17
Total Chargeable time 506.50   125.20
Non-Chargeable
Non chargeable time 45 12.30

Page 8



Training 30 14.26
Sickness / other absences 10 4.43

Total Non-Chargeable Time 85 30.99

Total Days 591.50 156.19
Annual Leave 99.5 23.24

Total Days 691 179.43

2.2 The chargeable time performance for quarter one is 80.16% this is above the 
planned target of 78.87%, well done to the team.

3         Assurance and Consultancy Activities

3.1 The assurance activities for this quarter focused on the review of Financial 
Services, Customer Operations, Risk Management and ICT. The ARA Manager 
has also supported the evidence and production of the Annual Governance 
Statement

3.2     The following reports were submitted this quarter and can be found in appendix 1 
to this report:
 Financial Services 17/18
 Customer Operations 17/18

3.3 The ARA Manager is a member of the Transformation and Procurement Board to 
provide advice and guidance on risk management, control and governance. The 
Board receives and considers transformation Project Outline Documents for 
approval, from this it considers the key deliverables of the project and how these 
contribute to the design principles for the transformational agenda at Allerdale. 

3.4 The ARA Officer has provided independent assurance and advice for two 
corporate projects;

 Waste Contract Tender – Moderation of the evaluation process used to 
award a contract to a supplier to deliver the Council’s statutory obligations 
for waste collections and ground maintenance.

 Digital Allerdale/Internet of Things Project - The project includes: Public 
town centre Wi-Fi, Internet of Things, Wireless business broadband, 
Digital advertising boards and Channel shift. The work involved 
moderation of a tender for “next generation wireless network” that provides 
Wi-Fi and increases 4G coverage within key towns.

4 Corporate Fraud

4.1     Preparation for the 2018/19 National Fraud Initiative Data Matching exercise has 
begun, the ARA Manager has liaised with all responsible officers across the 
council to ensure everyone is aware of what is expected and the time table for 
action.

Page 9



4.2 The Corporate Fraud Group continues to meet and discuss any opportunities to 
improve internal policy and process to contribute to the zero tolerance approach 
to Fraud at Allerdale. This group has already identified areas where improved 
communication channels between departments would support the ‘tell us once’ 
approach to service delivery for business customers.

5     Progress with the Annual Plan

5.1    The following reviews were in progress at 30 June 2018:

Audit Title Status 
Community Services Testing in progress
Risk Management Testing in progress
ICT Testing in progress

5.2 Management’s acceptance of recommendations - 93%

Assurance, Risk and Audit is designed to add value and assist management in 
achieving the organisations overall key aims and objectives. An indicator for ARA 
performance is that 100% of all recommendations made are accepted by 
management. One recommendation relating to paperless working was not 
accepted in the Financial Services review. 

5.3 Management’s implementation of agreed actions (recommendations)

For the quarter ending 30 June 2018, 10 actions are overdue, 8 of which were in 
progress. We have also reviewed the process for agreed actions and adjusted all 
dates to fall in line with quarter end reporting which will provide efficiencies in 
Officer follow up time. 

6 Quality Assurance and Improvement Program 
 
6.1 The Survey Monkey questionnaire has been revised and responses for this 

quarter can be found at appendix 2 to this report. We will continue to look at 
ways to increase client feedback responses and overall performance.

6.2 The ARA team attended an away day in June where we developed a new report. 
We wanted to make the report more effective and efficient for the team to 
complete and also include a more visual representation of the assurances in 
place. This template was discussed at the Audit Committee training day on 10 

August and will be used going forward.

7 Corporate Risks and Issues Log

7.1 It was agreed that in the interest of presentation and committee members 
receiving the most up to date information that the latest high level risk report 
would be attached as a link instead of an appendix for your information and 
regular oversight. 

Corporate Risk Log Hyperlink

Page 10

http://intra.allerdale.gov.uk/resources/SitePages/Risks.aspx
http://intra.allerdale.gov.uk/resources/SitePages/Risks.aspx
http://intra.allerdale.gov.uk/resources/SitePages/Risks.aspx
http://intra.allerdale.gov.uk/resources/SitePages/Risks.aspx


7.2 For external stakeholders the corporate risk log is also published as part of the 
performance reporting at Allerdale, the most recent performance report can be 
found at the following link.

performancereport_risks1819

8 Services Delivered as Locally as Possible

8.1 Assurance, Risk and Audit operates in support of other Council services.

9 Finance and or Resource Implications

9.1 There are currently no finance or resource issues that have not been previously 
reported to the Committee.

10 Legal Implications and Risks

10.1 Acceptance of this report has no legal, health and safety or risk management   
implications other than the consideration of the Corporate Risks and Issues Log 
by the Committee in terms of oversight of the effectiveness of Risk Management 
Framework.

11 Recommendations

11.1 That the report is accepted subject to any additional information that the 
Committee may require.

Emma Thompson
Assurance, Risk and Audit Manager

Page 11

https://www.allerdale.gov.uk/en/about-council/performance/
https://www.allerdale.gov.uk/en/about-council/performance/


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Financial Services Audit Review 2017/18 Appendix A

Introduction
As part of the 2017/18 Assurance Risk and Audit Plan, a review has been undertaken of the controls and procedures in place in 
respect of Financial Services (including Property Services in the areas of council priorities and corporate risks) at Allerdale Borough 
Council (ABC). The aim of this review is to provide management with assurance that controls, governance and risk management 
activities are robust and operating as intended, that mitigating actions are in place to manage the key corporate risks for this area 
as recorded by the risk owner and provide recommendations for improvements to add value, if appropriate.

Transaction testing provided assurances over the financial management of Financial Services functions, including treasury, income 
recording, payroll and reconciliations.

Assurance Risk and Audit would like to thank all staff involved during the course of the review for their help and assistance.

The objective and scope for the Financial Services audit review was defined in the audit brief issued to all relevant staff on 9 
November 2017.

Walkthrough testing and results which relate to Financial Services

Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

Council 
priorities

Efficient and effective 
operations are in 
place to manage the 
delivery of Council 
Business Plan 
objectives.

Achievement of 
business objectives. 
Data integrity; 
Efficient and effective 
process; safeguard 
assets; Compliance.

Substantial The review established that effective 
mitigation and management controls were in 
place for the effective delivery of Financial 
Services objectives within the corporate 
business plan.

Allerdale Borough Council have a 4 year 
Council Plan and an annual Business Plan to 
set out the activities that will be undertaken to 
deliver against the Council Plan objectives as 
a measure to continue providing value for 
money for expenditure.

A business plan objective requiring six 
monthly car park inspections for the 
maintenance of Allerdales pay and display car 
parks is in place. A record exists for the 
monitoring of inspections and works carried 
out, however the information could be 

P
age 13



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

improved. The inspection spreadsheet for 
maintenance of car parking provision was not 
consistently or accurately completed and no 
key was present to explain what the wording 
used (OK, Fair and Good) covered. Six 
monthly visits were not evidenced, with dates 
showing inspections taking place at nine 
months, ten months and five years apart on 
Maryport Promenade Car Park. Refer to 
recommendation 1.
Property Services did not retain records of 
customer complaints/reports. No central store 
or procedures for the retention of this 
information had been established. Refer to 
recommendation 2. 
Continuous cost saving work had been 
completed to ensure better provision of public 
toilet facilities through upgrading and 
transferring assets.

Corporate 
Risks

Mitigating actions are 
in place to manage 
corporate risks 

Data integrity; 
Efficient and effective 
process; safeguard 
assets; Compliance.

Substantial SMT monitor the live corporate risk register 
which is readily available to all including the 
public.

High (red) risks are monitored by SMT, the 
Senior Policy and Improvement Officer also 
highlights these via a quarterly performance 
report.

The four corporate risks tested relating to 
financial services evidenced that effective 
mitigation and management controls were in 
place for the effective management and 
mitigation of these risks.

P
age 14



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

Structure, role 
and 
responsibilities

Adequate structure in 
place for effective 
service delivery and 
clearly defined roles 
and responsibilities.

Objectives; Data 
integrity; Efficient and 
effective process; 
Compliance.

Substantial A re-structure took place in 2016 which 
focused on improving generic working and 
service resilience. A Deputy 151 Officer’s post 
was established as part of the restructure.

A questionnaire circulated to 10 members of 
finance staff showed that 8 staff felt their roles 
were clearly defined and expectations 
managed.

Business continuity plans and documents 
were available and are regularly updated, and 
communicated with the department at both 
management and team meetings.

Policy, 
procedures 
and legislation

Data is appropriately 
handled, segregation 
of duties exists and 
financial regulations 
are up to date and in 
place.

Efficient and effective 
process; Safeguard 
assets; Compliance; 
Counter fraud.

Substantial The review established that Financial 
Services had appropriate knowledge on 
policy, procedures and legislation. A number 
of issues were however noted in connection 
with the storage of documents and data 
security.

Documents containing personal information 
including debtor’s instalments and transaction 
reports were not being stored in lockable 
cabinets. Computers were left unlocked on a 
number of occasions when officers were not 
at their desks. Refer to recommendation 3.

A review of the open credit facility bank 
signatories identified four signatories that 
were out of date, two employees having left 
the Authority in 2014.This issue was 
addressed at the time of the review. Refer to 
recommendation 4.

Financial Regulations are agreed at Council 

P
age 15



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

and available on the intranet document store, 
however 8 out of the 11 random Allerdale 
employees asked didn’t know what the 
financial regulations were, two had read them 
and one had seen communication regarding 
them. The Financial Regulations state that 
Senior Officers are responsible for ensuring 
that all staff under their direction are aware of 
and understand the content of the Authority’s 
Financial Regulations and of related 
guidelines and procedures and that they 
comply with them. Refer to recommendation 
5.

The sample of overtime transactions selected 
identified errors made had allowed an 
employee to be overpaid. One sample 
showed the wrong hourly rate had been used 
on a number of occasions, dates, times and 
totals had not been checked allowing 
inaccurate duplicate claims to be made. There 
was no single source of guidance available to 
confirm whose responsibility it was to monitor 
and check this information within the overtime 
process. The responsibility of senior officers 
in connection with the authorisation of 
payments to employees and for ensuring valid 
entitlement to payment and compliance with 
council policy and terms of employment in 
calculating the amount to be paid is however 
clearly described within the Financial 
Regulations. Refer to recommendation 6.

Urgent same 
day payments

Process in place to 
effectively manage 
emergency payments 

Data integrity; 
Efficient and effective 
process; Safeguard 

Substantial Testing and discussions confirmed that 
finance staff were pro-active when it came to 
managing an identified same day payment 

P
age 16



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

and avoid duplicate 
payments.

assets; Compliance. risk.

No written procedures were in place for same 
day payments. The team had good 
knowledge when it came to their own role(s) 
in the process, however were not familiar of 
others role(s) in the process. Refer to 
recommendation 7.
Same day payment testing showed that one 
item included in the sample tested had been 
paid incorrectly and then corrected, there 
were no notes present on the system to 
explain this, however due to the extensive 
knowledge and experience of the TSO (KM) 
the transaction in question was easily 
identified and explained. Refer to area for 
improvement 1.
A trial to process urgent same day payments 
paperless was suggested, in line with the 
corporate drive for smarter ways of working 
and to reduce the risk of misplacement of 
documents. However this offered no 
additional assurances over the completeness 
and accuracy of processing same day 
payments when compared to the current 
(paper based) process.

Budget 
Control

Effective budgetary 
controls in place 

Data integrity; 
Efficient and effective 
process; safeguard 
assets; Compliance.

Comprehensive Testing and discussions confirmed that 
Budget timetable and reporting were 
managed effectively. Forecasting outputs 
were examined and challenged at SMT 
regularly. A Star Chamber approach is 
adopted which improves accountability and 
responsibility for budget management. 
Financial workshops for third tier managers 

P
age 17



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

are held quarterly.

The level of work finance had put into 
improving accountability, ownership and 
understanding in relation to budget 
management for budget holders and 
members should be noted, which is reflected 
in the comprehensive assurance opinion 
achieved.

GDPR Work is underway for 
GDPR compliance

Data integrity; 
Efficient and effective 
process; safeguard 
assets; Compliance.

Substantial Finance are working pro-actively and have 
nominated GDPR representatives within the 
team.

The initial data register has been completed 
and Finance are on target based on Allerdale 
Borough Councils GDPR Compliance 
Assessment and where the information and 
records officer would expect them to be.

The staff survey evidenced that 50% of 
finance staff were aware of GDPR 
requirements and impacts on their roles, 50% 
did not. E-Learning training is mandatory to all 
staff and will be completed by the end of April.

Performance 
management 

Appropriate PIs are in 
place to manage the 
service.

Data integrity; 
efficient and effective 
process; safeguard 
assets; Compliance.

Comprehensive The organisations KPI data is stored on a 
shared excel spreadsheet, which is updated 
and sent to SMT on a monthly basis. 

Effective processes were in place to monitor 
statutory and non-statutory deadlines and KPI 
performance, including regular monitoring and 
performance reports.

Testing showed that corporate KPI KFS01 (% 
supplier invoices paid within 30 days) did not 
achieve the 98% target during the first six 
months of the year. However the target was 

P
age 18



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

exceeded in August and October and % 
improving from Q1 to Q2. Performance for 
quarter 3 was 99%. The key reason for the 
underperformance during the first six months 
was due to staff outside of the finance 
function not receipting orders when goods 
had been delivered, this was also raised at 
SMT Cascade meeting to cascade to teams 
as an awareness measure. 

Emails are sent both via the system and 
finance staff to remind departments to receipt 
their orders and Finance are proactive in 
looking at ways they can improve this by 
increasing knowledge and awareness.

The Financial services survey evidenced that 
70% knew what their teams KPI's were but 
30% did not, however these are accessible for 
everyone to view on the shared area and are 
discussed at team meetings and 1-2-1’s.

Financial Services Area for improvement 

Area for Improvement Associated risks
1 Notes should be added to the finance system to clarify the reason for any 

amendments / corrections.  
Efficient and effective processes, 
data quality, Risk Management.

P
age 19



Financial Services Recommendations

Recommendation Associated risks Priority Responsibility, due date & 
response

1 The inspection spreadsheet in relation 
to car park maintenance should be 
consistently completed and a key 
added to explain what the wording 
(OK, Fair and Good) covers. A 
reasonable inspection period should 
be agreed, adhered to and recorded 
to maintain an accurate record of 
actions and outcomes taken by 
management.

Loss of data; Efficient and 
effective processes, data 
quality, customer 
satisfaction, objectives

Low Property Services 
Supervisor.(check job title)

30 April 2018

2 A process should be agreed by 
property services to store customer 
complaints/reports in line with the 
corporate retention policy, using the 
corporate complaints system 
myAllerdale.

Loss of data; Efficient and 
effective processes, data 
quality, customer 
satisfaction. Objectives.

Medium Property Services 
Supervisor.(check job title)

30 April 2018

3 All documents containing personal 
information should be stored in secure 
lockable cabinets in line with the 
corporate retention policy and GDPR.

Efficient and effective 
processes, data quality, 
Objectives, Risk 
Management, legal 
requirement, cost to council

High Financial Services Manager 
30th September 2018

4 Open Credit bank signatories should 
be updated and reviewed at an 
agreed period.

Efficient and effective 
processes, data quality, 
Objectives, Risk 
Management.

Medium This was addressed at the time of 
the review.

5 A reminder should be sent to all 
Senior Officers highlighting Senior 
Officers’ responsibility to ensure that 
all staff under their direction are aware 
of and understand the existence and 
relevant content of the Authority’s 

Efficient and effective 
processes, data quality, 
Objectives, Risk 
Management.

Medium Financial Services Manager 
30th September 2018

P
age 20



Recommendation Associated risks Priority Responsibility, due date & 
response

Financial Regulations and related 
guidelines and procedures.

6 To assist in the completion of the 
overtime form guidance note should 
be added to the form 

Efficient and effective 
processes, data quality, 
Objectives, Risk 
Management.

Medium Assistant Accountant (payroll)
30th September 2018

7 Procedures and guidance for same 
day payments should be clearly 
defined and documented, including 
who does what and what qualifies as 
an urgent payment.

Efficient and effective 
processes, Objectives, Risk 
Management.

High Financial Services Manager 
30th September 2018

Walkthrough testing and results which have arisen during the financial Services Review, which relate to Human 
Resources

Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

Policy, 
procedures 
and legislation

Data is appropriately 
handled, segregation 
of duties exists and 
financial regulations 
are up to date and in 
place.

Efficient and effective 
process; Safeguard 
assets; Compliance; 
Counter fraud.

Substantial Sample starter, leaver and mover selected 
identified ineffective administration of the 
Human Resource (HR) process allowed the 
sample forms to be incomplete, the sample 
mover showed that the previous and current 
contracts were missing, there were no P45 
forms on file for 3 samples tested. HR 
reviewed and amended the form this has 
contributed to key steps in the process being 
missed.

HR and payroll work from separate sage 
systems, which are not integrated, this causes 
the need for information to be processed by 
each service separately and puts reliance on 
key information being communicated and 
shared manually, this is not an efficient or 
effective way of working for the organisation. 
Duplicate employee checks were not 

P
age 21



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

completed and accuracy checks were not 
being completed at the time of testing, due to 
resource issues. Refer to recommendation 
8 and area for improvement 2.
Discussions confirmed that 90% of leaver’s 
questionnaires are not returned and no exit 
interviews were undertaken. Refer to 
recommendation 9.
The old flexible working policy was still 
available to view on the document store. 
Refer to area for improvement 3.
Testing found that an individual has a home 
working contract which is no longer 
appropriate as he attends the office more 
frequently than he works from home. This has 
caused mileage claims to be paid from home 
to the office on a regular basis. Mileage rates 
paid did not comply with the Travel and 
Subsistence rates. Refer to 
recommendation 10.

Areas for improvement which have arisen during the financial Services Review, which relate to Human Resources
Area for Improvement Associated risks

2 Sample starter, leaver and mover forms should be reviewed to ensure they 
include all necessary information including duplicate employee checks. The 
process should be communicated to ensure all departments involved 
understand their responsibilities. All associated documentation should be 
collected and scanned into a secure location.

Efficient and effective processes, 
data quality, Objectives, Risk 
Management.

3 All old policies should be deleted from the Document Store. Efficient and effective processes, 
data quality

P
age 22



Recommendations which have arisen during the financial Services Review, which relate to Human Resources
Recommendation Associated risks Priority Responsibility, due date & 

response
8  A joint integrated HR and payroll 

systems should be looked at being 
procured to improve performance 
information, avoid duplicated work, 
reliance on key information being 
communicated and shared manually 
and to provide an efficient and 
effective way of working for the 
organisation.

Efficient and effective 
processes, data quality, 
Objectives, Risk 
Management.

Medium HR Manager

9 If the current leavers process 
(questionnaires) is not effective 
alternative options should be 
considered, these should be 
monitored and performance managed.

Efficient and effective 
processes, data quality, 
Objectives, people

Medium HR Manager

31 May 2018

10 To support the flexible working values 
at Allerdale, the home working Policy 
should be reviewed along with all 
home working contracts to ensure all 
home workers are paid expenses 
consistently and fairly in line with a 
corporate policy and criteria.

Efficient and effective 
processes, Objectives, Risk 
Management.

High HR Manager
All HR polices are to be reviewed. 
This will be incorporated within this 
larger piece of work. However work 
to rectify the risks identified within 
the review will be managed 
immediately.
1 April 2019 

Walkthrough testing and results which have arisen during the financial Services Review, which relate to Procurement and 
Project Office

Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

Corporate 
Risks

Mitigating actions are 
in place to manage 
corporate risks 

Data integrity; 
Efficient and effective 
process; safeguard 

Substantial The review identified ineffective training and 
support for project managers based in 
services was in place. It was acknowledged 

P
age 23



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

assets; Compliance. that project managers based outside the 
Programme Office did not know what was 
expected from them or of the relevant 
processes to be followed throughout a project. 
This exposed further weaknesses regarding 
Finance rarely being consulted at the start of a 
procurement project and very little costings for 
projects being available despite the fact these 
should be agreed at the outset and monitored 
throughout Refer to recommendations 11, 
12 and 13.

Recommendations which have arisen during the financial Services Review, which relate to Procurement and Project 
Office

Recommendation Associated risks Priority Responsibility, due date & 
response

11 In depth practical training and support 
should be provided for project 
managers including guidance on 
responsibilities and expectations.   

Efficient and effective 
processes, data quality, 
customer satisfaction, 
Objectives, Risk 
Management.

Medium Commissioning Manager

31 May 2018

12 Financial Services should be 
consulted at the planning stages of all 
projects. 

Efficient and effective 
processes, data quality, 
customer satisfaction, 
Objectives, Risk 
Management, cost to 
council

Low Commissioning Manager

Implemented with immediate 
effect, continuous improvements. 

13 Full costings for projects should be 
agreed at the outset of a project, 
recorded and monitored throughout.

Efficient and effective 
processes, data quality, 
customer satisfaction, 
Objectives, Risk 
Management, cost to 
council

Medium Commissioning Manager

30 September 2018

This will require the support of the 
board and management, not to 
approve projects without costings 

P
age 24



Recommendation Associated risks Priority Responsibility, due date & 
response
being provided.

Customer Operations Audit Review 2017/18

Introduction

As part of the 2017/18 Assurance Risk and Audit Plan, a review has been undertaken of the controls and procedures in place in 
respect of Customer Operations including Housing Benefit Payments, Council Tax, NNDR and Customer Services at Allerdale 
Borough Council (ABC). The aim of this review is to provide management with assurance that controls, governance and risk 
management activities are robust and operating as intended, that mitigating actions are in place to manage the key corporate risks 
for this area as recorded by the risk owner and provide recommendations for improvements to add value, if appropriate.

Information and evidence was gathered using a number of techniques including testing, observations and questionnaires.

Assurance Risk and Audit would like to thank all staff involved during the course of the review for their help and assistance.

The objective and scope for the Customer Operations audit review was defined in the audit brief issued to all relevant staff on 21 
February 2018.

Walkthrough testing and results

Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

Council 
priorities

Efficient and effective 
operations are in place 
to manage the delivery 
of Council Business 
Plan objectives.

Achievement of 
business objectives. 
Data integrity; 
Efficient and effective 
process; safeguard 
assets; Compliance.

Substantial The review established that effective 
mitigation and management controls were in 
place for the effective delivery of Customer 
Operations objectives within the corporate 
business plan.

There were some good business partnering 
work being completed.  Customer Operations 
support benefit claimants and customers 
dealing with money problems by providing 
debt advice to improve financial capability.  
The team provide advice and support 

P
age 25



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

internally where possible and sign post 
customers for further formal advice to the 
Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB).

In regards to the council priority ‘to carry out a 
business process review of Development 
Services and implement a new Land and 
Property system to improve efficiency and 
reduce costs’, an implementation date was in 
place for June 2018. 

The Licensing Department were included in 
the scope of the project however it hadn’t 
been flagged that Customer Services had a 
role in the process and also required system 
access, this meant licences required by 
Customer Services weren’t included in the 
budget. This issue was identified and it was 
confirmed that having looked at the number of 
users within each section and the number of 
licences procured, there were sufficient 
licences for those in Customer Services who 
actively work on taxi licenses and read only 
access was being explored for the additional 
customer services staff.

Corporate 
Risks

Efficient and effective 
operations are in place 
to manage the delivery 
of Corporate Risks.

Achievement of 
business objectives. 
Data integrity; 
Efficient and effective 
process; safeguard 
assets; Compliance.

 Substantial SMT monitor the live corporate risk register 
which is readily available to all including the 
public as part of the quarterly performance 
report.

High (red) risks are monitored by SMT, the 
Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and 
Information) also highlights these via a 
quarterly performance report.

P
age 26



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

Allerdale Borough Council have a four year 
Council Plan and an annual Business Plan to 
set out the activities that will be undertaken to 
deliver against the Council Plan objectives as 
a measure to continue providing value for 
money for expenditure. 

The review identified that corporate Risks 17. 
‘Information managed by the council was not 
protected’ and corporate risk 21 ‘Failure to 
manage welfare reform’ required updating. 
The ICT Manager was not aware of risk 17.  
This risk would not have been monitored by 
SMT due to the score being under the 
corporate score of 9. Refer to 
Recommendation 1. 

Assurances around corporate risk 54 were 
tested on 18-19 March when there was 
unsuccessful attempts to hack into the council 
email system. The robust security measures in 
place worked successfully and all staff were 
notified and provided with advice in a timely 
manner.

Customer 
Services

Council services are 
accessible to all 
customers, are 
working in line with the 
Customer Access 
Strategy, systems and 
procedures are in 
place to ensure 
prompt, accurate and 

Data integrity; 
Efficient and effective 
process; safeguard 
assets; Compliance.

 Substantial There is an extensive choice of 
communication, information and payment 
methods available to meet customers’ needs 
and demands including a 24 hour payment 
line, paypoints at a number of outlets within 
the borough, a payments machine in Allerdale 
House, the ‘Tell Us Once scheme and area 
offices in all the major towns within Allerdale.

P
age 27



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

complete recording of 
payments taken and 
appropriate 
performance 
indicators  and GDPR 
requirements are in 
Place to manage the 
function.

The old news link for 'more choice to pay' from 
2014 was still available on Allerdale’s website 
when searching for council payment methods 
and the customer services survey evidenced 
that although 60% stated they knew where the 
current paypoints where, 40% didn’t and 
comments evidenced that out of the 60% that 
did, the majority only knew council office 
paypoints and not all external paypoints, 
therefore could not advise a customer to their 
nearest available outlet. Refer to 
recommendation 2. 

Customer services is forward thinking and is 
actively trying to encourage and assist 
customers in to using Allerdale’s extensive 
and developing on-line services.

There is a current Customer Access Strategy 
accessible online, there is an associated Key 
Performance Indicator (KPI) in place to 
monitor speed of calls answered and the Head 
of Service has detailed performance reports 
which are shared with the service regularly, 
however the customer services survey 
showed 80% of staff said they did not know 
what the Customer Access Strategy was with 
only 1 out of 16 answering yes, three knew but 
had not read it. Refer to area for 
improvement 1.

Visits to customers outside council property 
should be handled in line with the Customer 
Access Strategy. A new mobile working 

P
age 28



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

system has been implemented to support this 
service. As expected with a new system, there 
have been a few teething issues experienced 
in regards to inspection requests from 
Academy not coming through to the mobile 
system and photos not linking to the new 
system, so Comino is still having to be used to 
upload pictures. These issues were being 
addressed at the time of the review. No logs 
were kept to evidence if inspections had been 
arranged verbally or were un-notified. Refer to 
area for improvement 2.

New builds eligibility visits can be processed 
via the new system, however they are still 
currently being entered into the manual 
spreadsheet and manual files being created. 
There were no known dates to when training 
would be provided in order for the new system 
to be utilised for new build visits. Refer to 
recommendation 3.

Allerdale House reception/Customer Services 
has recently been re-designed to a high 
specification, this includes a child's area, 
comfortable seating areas and private meeting 
rooms if required. A customer satisfaction 
survey is completed quarterly and KPI 
information for the customer satisfaction 
survey shows that customers are generally 
satisfied with the service provided.

Information was available online regarding the 
new corporate complaints process, however 
the Complaints Handling Procedure available 

P
age 29



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

online, was for the old procedure and no 
longer relevant. There was no official 
Complaints Handling Procedure for the new 
process, however there was a procedure for 
3rd tier managers and Heads of Service and 
training had been provided to both. Refer to 
area for improvement 3.

Testing showed a number of teething issues 
with the new complaints system and 
procedure, including the myAllerdale system 
not allowing emails to be sent via the system 
and users having to respond via their own 
outlook then upload them to the system (the 
ability to send an email exists but the 
customer cannot reply). There was also 
confusion around what would classify as a 
service request or a corporate complaint. 
Testing identified a complaint had been raised 
as a service request in error, this is due to the 
lack of guidance available to the team 
administering the system, for classifying a 
complaint or service request. Refer to 
recommendations 4 and 5.

Good initiative was shown within the 
management team as internal measures had 
been put in place to improve customer 
services and professionalism for example no 
use of personal phones for front desk staff 
was permitted, this provided assurances over 
misuse and sharing of data and management 
of reputational damage and professionalism.

The customer services survey showed that 

P
age 30



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

40% of staff felt they had been adequately 
trained to use all systems / tools needed for 
their role, however 60% did not, the majority of 
the comments related to myAllerdale. Refer 
back to recommendation 4. 

An observation of the cheques process 
highlighted some ineffective areas. Post 
should be delivered by 9am however on this 
occasion the post didn’t arrive until 10am, 
leaving document management unable to start 
their daily tasks and the time delay having a 
knock on effect for Customer Services starting 
their processing of the cheques. This was not 
a one off occurrence and on a couple of 
occasions post had not been delivered until 
11am. The contract between ourselves and 
Royal Mail could be located. Three deliveries 
were taken during cheque opening, there were 
no barriers to separate external deliveries 
from the cheque opening area and storage 
trays. Refer to recommendations 6 and 7.

Assurance was provided over the dual control 
post opening processes including, opening 
and recording of cheques. Used stamps were 
retained for air ambulance.

Allerdale addressed and departmental post is 
totalled and recorded on sheets of paper and 
kept in file for post comparison data. Refer to 
area for improvement 4.

During observation it was mentioned that an 
automatically locking door had been 

P
age 31



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

suggested and would be beneficial as it can 
slip your mind to lock the door at the end of 
the day and previously a member of the public 
had walked in during a delivery, when the door 
had been left open. Post and cheque handling 
procedures were requested from the BSA, 
these were eventually supplied by the Senior 
Customer Accounts Officer however they were 
from 2007 and not relevant to the current 
process or structure. Refer to area for 
improvement 5 and recommendation 8.

Front line staff processed cheques in between 
serving customers, this made the process time 
consuming and inefficient, due to the resource 
structure this also meant that some cheques 
were not processed until the following day 
(this could have knock on complications i.e. 
reminders could go out for none payments). 
Refer back to recommendation 8.

It was confirmed in discussions with staff that 
complaints from customers regarding incorrect 
posting of payments are recorded and 
investigated to establish the cause, this was 
not observed or tested as part of the review. 

The possibility of no longer accepting cheques 
was agreed but not adopted in 2014 when the 
council went cashless. This was discussed 
with the Customer Services Manager and 
Customer Operations Manager, some figures 
had been collated in the past which showed 
only a small number of customers still pay by 
cheques, however the information was not 

P
age 32



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

current and the effects on departments had 
not been considered. The total number of 
cheques processed for 17/18 was 15,320. 
Refer to recommendation 9.

Housing 
Benefit 
Payments

Adequate controls are 
in place for secure and 
effective service 
delivery. Roles and 
responsibilities are 
clearly defined. 
Payments are made in 
an accurate and timely 
manner.

Objectives; Data 
integrity; Efficient and 
effective process; 
Compliance.

 Comprehensive Assurance was gained from the observation 
on 13 March 2018 of the weekly Housing 
Benefit pay-run process, controls and key 
controls were in place. 

The competent and experienced System 
Support Officer (SSO) has a robust process in 
place and this was followed to ensure the 
correct controls and procedures were in place. 
The SSO updates the process on a regular 
basis to ensure that other team members 
have a reference should they be performing 
the tasks.

Cheques are currently taken to Document 
Management to record and post, this was due 
to old ways of working when there used to be 
a high volume of cheques and the need for 
remittance slips, remittance slips are no longer 
required and only a small volume of cheques 
are issued (two during the observation) 
therefore there is no longer a requirement for 
Document Management to record and post 
the cheques on finances behalf, this was 
identified and implemented at the time of the 
review. Refer to Recommendation 10.

Observation and testing undertaken of failed 
BACS payments concluded that measures 
were in place to ensure issues were resolved 

P
age 33



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

quickly and efficiently and returned payments 
are processed effectively in all relevant 
finance systems.

Testing and walkthrough observations with 
finance staff confirmed that there were good 
controls in place to ensure that payment 
balances in Academy correspond accurately 
to those in the General Ledger (GL). Bank 
reconciliation to reconcile the bank account to 
the GL and additional reconciliations of 
Council Tax and NNDR are completed on a 
monthly basis this was confirmed by the 
Technical Officer and noted on the Monthly 
certification form 17/18 which is checked by 
the Financial Services Manager, this was not 
re-performed for this review due to it being 
considered low risk, comprehensive 
assurance has been provided in previous 
reviews and substantive evidence was 
provided by the Assistant Accountant to show 
the reconciliation had been done accurately.

Council Tax Data is appropriately 
handled, segregation 
of duties exists and 
financial regulations 
are up to date and in 
place.

Efficient and effective 
process; Safeguard 
assets; Compliance; 
Counter fraud.

Comprehensive Testing and discussions with key members of 
staff demonstrated a good system of controls 
to ensure all dwellings receive accurate 
council tax bills each financial year. Testing 
confirmed quality control resulting from 
sample testing at the beginning of the year.

Competent and experienced staff carry out 
prompt action and reconciliation to Valuation 
Office schedule to confirm accuracy and 
correct billing.

P
age 34



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

Observation and testing demonstrated 
accurate processing for new occupants, 
changes and deletions of household 
circumstances. 

Observation and testing demonstrated that 
overpaid council tax is refunded promptly after 
all steps in the process are taken to ensure 
refunds are appropriate. Sample testing 
confirmed that income and refund balances in 
Academy are accurately recorded in the GL. 
Payments testing confirmed correct payment 
posting. 

NNDR Process in place to 
effectively manage 
emergency payments 
and avoid duplicate 
payments.

Data integrity; 
Efficient and effective 
process; Safeguard 
assets; Compliance.

Comprehensive A combination of system, human controls and 
testing showed good controls are in place to 
ensure business premises receive a correct 
and accurate NNDR bill for each financial 
year. 

Observation and sample testing demonstrated 
key controls are robust to ensure the correct 
rateable value is applied at the earliest 
opportunity. Prompt action is taken and a 
reconciliation to the Valuation Office schedule 
confirms accuracy and completeness of the 
database.

Sample testing of exemption relief (Liability), 
confirmed that accounts are updated promptly 
and changes of circumstances acted upon at 
the earliest opportunity to ensure accurate 
billing. Integrity checks are made at account 
start up. The suspense account is regularly 
reviewed and transactions transferred, 

P
age 35



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

however a transaction of £550 from May 2015 
remains unresolved.

Testing confirmed payments were allocated to 
the correct accounts in Academy and accurate 
and timely reconciliation of Academy and 
Total GL balances.

A test of an NNDR refund demonstrated that 
some key controls including segregation of 
duties for processing and authorising refunds 
and the annotation of report nr6130 weren’t 
consistently followed. Refer to 
Recommendation 11 and area for 
improvement 6.

GDPR The project to deliver 
GDPR compliance is 
managed and 
monitored.

Data integrity; 
Efficient and effective 
process; safeguard 
assets; Compliance.

Substantial The initial data asset register has been 
completed and Customer Operations are on 
target based on Allerdale Borough Councils 
GDPR Compliance Assessment and they are 
where the Information Governance and Data 
Protection Officer would expect them to be.

Customer Operations staff were sent a short 
questionnaire asking if they were aware of 
GDPR and the Corporate Retention Policy. 
Answers evidenced that knowledge was 
mixed however none asked were aware of the 
Corporate Retention Policy. New E-learning 
training is to be mandatory for all staff to 
complete prior to 1st May, this will ensure staff 
are aware and know how to comply with 
GDPR. At the time of reviewing the report 
100% of customer Operations staff had 
completed this training. Refer to 
Recommendation 12.

P
age 36



Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

Performance 
management 

Service performance 
is managed and 
monitored.

Data integrity; 
efficient and effective 
process; safeguard 
assets; Compliance.

Substantial The organisations KPI data is stored on a 
shared excel spreadsheet, which is updated 
and sent to SMT on a monthly basis. 

Effective processes were in place to monitor 
statutory and non-statutory deadlines and KPI 
performance, including regular monitoring and 
performance reports within Customer 
Services.

KPI information is available to all via the 
shared area and Customer Operations 
managers communicate KPI information to 
staff at 1-2-1’s, team meetings, and in some 
cases statistics displayed on  team 
whiteboards and performance reports shared, 
however the staff asked did not know how or 
where to find these on the shared area. Refer 
to Area for Improvement 7.

Areas for improvement 

Area for Improvement Associated risks
1 Although there were a number of channels for staff to access and make 

themselves aware of the Customer Access Strategy, including on-line 
information, the customer services survey showed 80% of staff said they did 
not know what the Customer Access Strategy was. To transfer some of the 
responsibility and ownership to the employees, this should be discussed with 
staff during 1-2-1’s and appraisals. 

Efficient and effective processes, 
data quality, Objectives, Risk 
Management.

2 The communication method for arrangement of inspections should be noted on 
the system i.e. informed via letter, verbally or un-notified where appropriate, for 
a clear audit trail and data quality.

Efficient and effective processes, 
data quality, Objectives, customer 
satisfaction.

3 The Complaints Handling Procedure available online, for the old procedure Efficient and effective processes, 

P
age 37



therefore no longer relevant, should be removed, to avoid confusion and 
incorrect information sharing. 

data quality, Objectives, Risk 
Management, customer 
satisfaction.

4 Allerdale addressed and departmental post data comparison information is 
recorded on sheets of paper and kept in a manual file, this should be recorded 
and stored paperless in line with the corporate drive for smarter ways of 
working.

Efficient and effective processes, 
data quality, objectives.

5 Managers should be assured that all staff have a satisfactory level of security 
awareness and knowledge. 

Efficient and effective processes, 
data quality, Risk Management.

6 The nr6130 NNDR refunds authorisation report should be signed and dated to 
show who has authorised the refunds payrun.

Efficient and effective processes, 
data quality, Risk Management.
Efficient and effective processes, 
data quality, objectives.

7 Where to find the organisations KPI information should be communicated with 
staff either at 1-2-1’s, team meetings or via email.

Efficient and effective processes, 
data quality, objectives.

Recommendations

Recommendation Associated risks Priority Responsibility, due date & 
response

1 The full corporate Risk Register 
should be reviewed at an agreed 
period to ensure that the risks which 
score below 9 are also monitored, 
relevant and up to date with the 
appropriate responsible officers and to 
avoid duplication.

Efficient and effective 
processes, data quality, 
Objectives, Risk 
Management.

Medium Customer Operations Manager

30 June 2018

2 A list of current payment methods and 
paypoints available within Allerdale 
should be available on-line.

Efficient and effective 
processes, data quality, 
customer satisfaction, 
objectives.

Low Implemented at the time of the 
review.

3 Training should be arranged and 
provided in order for the inspections 

Efficient and effective 
processes, data quality, 

Medium Customer Service Manager

P
age 38



Recommendation Associated risks Priority Responsibility, due date & 
response

software to be fully utilised for new 
builds once the software is fully 
implemented.

objectives. 31 January 2019

4 Procedures and guidance for 
corporate complaints should be 
clearly defined, including what 
qualifies as a complaint or a service 
request and what is expected of the 
department the issue(s) are escalated 
to, following the completion of the 
procedures formal training should be 
rolled out to the PA’s and service 
managers/officers involved in 
updating myAllerdale. 

Loss of data; Efficient and 
effective processes, data 
quality, customer 
satisfaction. Objectives, Risk 
Management.

Medium
 

Head of Customer and 
Commissioning, OD & 
Transformation

23 December 2018

5 Issues raised in regards to 
myAllerdale functionality i.e. emails 
not able to be sent to customers via 
the system, not knowing how to delete 
documents once uploaded etc. should 
be addressed and rectified.  

Efficient and effective 
processes, data quality, 
customer satisfaction, 
Objectives, Risk 
Management.

Medium Implemented at the time of the 
review.

6 The contract between ourselves and 
Royal Mail should be reviewed to 
ensure value for money is obtained.

Efficient and effective 
processes, data quality, 
customer satisfaction, 
Objectives, Risk 
Management, cost to 
council.

Medium Customer Accounts Manager

30 September 2018

7 Security measures regarding external 
deliveries and other staff during the 
cheque opening process should be 
reviewed. 

Efficient and effective 
processes, Objectives, Risk 
Management, cost to the 
council.

Medium Customer Accounts Manager

23 December 2018

8 The system in place for processing 
cheques should be improved to 
ensure a secure efficient and 
documented process is developed.

Efficient and effective 
processes, data quality, 
Objectives, Risk 
Management, cost to 
council

Medium Customer Operations Manager

23 December 2018

P
age 39



Recommendation Associated risks Priority Responsibility, due date & 
response

9 Accepting cheques as a payment 
method should be reconsidered in line 
with channel shift and delivering an 
efficient and effective council.

Efficient and effective 
processes, data quality, 
Objectives, Risk 
Management, cost to 
council

Medium Commissioning, OD & 
Transformation

31 January 2019

10 Due to remittance slips no longer 
being used and only a small volume of 
cheques issued there is no longer a 
requirement for Document 
Management to record and post the 
cheques on finances behalf.

Efficient and effective 
processes.

Low Implemented at the time of the 
review.

11 Segregation of duties in regards to 
processing and authorising NNDR 
refunds should be in place and 
followed. 

Efficient and effective 
processes, data quality, 
Objectives, Risk 
Management, Efficient and 
effective processes.

Medium Customer Accounts Manager

30 June 2018

12 Managers should make staff aware of 
the Corporate Retention Policy and 
ensure personal information is being 
obtained correctly, in line with the 
applied GDPR date (25.05.2018).

Efficient and effective 
processes, data quality, 
Objectives, Risk 
Management.

Medium Customer Operations Manager

01 June 2018

P
age 40



Guide to the audit assurance opinions
Comprehensive There is a sound system of controls designed 

to meet objectives, manage risks and controls 
are consistently applied in all the areas 
reviewed.

Substantial There is a good system of controls and risks 
are managed. However, there are 
opportunities for improvement in the design or 
consistency of application that will assist in the 
achievement of objectives identified as being 
at risk in the areas reviewed.

Limited Key controls exist to help achieve objectives 
and manage principle risks. However, there 
are opportunities for improvement in the overall 
control environment which would enhance the 
design and application of controls, thereby 
assisting the achievement of objectives 
identified as being at risk in the areas 
reviewed.

Minimal The absence of basic key controls or the 
inconsistent application of key controls is so 
severe that the audit area is open to abuse or 
error. Risks to objectives are not being 
managed.

P
age 41



Agreed action levels
High There is a control vulnerability that could result in 

failure to achieve corporate objectives, reputational 
damage, lead to material loss, exposure to serious 
fraud or failure to meet legal or statutory 
requirements. This includes material non-compliance 
with the Constitution, Financial Regulations or Council 
policies and procedures. Managers should address 
high priority recommendations urgently to rectify the 
situation.

Medium The system or procedure lacks adequate control that 
could result in failure to achieve operational 
objectives, non-material loss, or non-compliance with 
departmental operational or financial procedures. This 
would also include minor non-compliance with 
Financial Regulations. Although not fundamental to 
system integrity these risks should be addressed 
promptly as the next priority.

Low To implement this would be good practice to improve 
or enhance the system and the achievement of 
objectives. Several low risks in combination may give 
rise to concern.  

In line with the Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards (PSIAS), Assurance, Risk and Audit will monitor all current and future 
agreed actions. Actions will be recorded in the actions log on Sharepoint including all progress updates whether made by assigned 

P
age 42



officers directly or by Assurance, Risk and Audit on their behalf. Managers with Network system access have the opportunity to 
monitor these actions. Implementation dates are agreed before the Final report is issued, amendments to these dates must be 
agreed with Assurance, Risk and Audit. Agreed actions are monitored by the Senior Management Team and Audit Committee. In 
the instance that an engagement has not been conducted in line with the PSIAs, the areas of non-conformance will be reported as 
part of the final report.

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 44



50.00% 1

0.00% 0

50.00% 1

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q1 How would you rate your overall satisfaction with us?
Answered: 2 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 2

Good

 Satisfied

Dissatisfied

somewhat
dissatisfied

very
dissatisfied

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Good

 Satisfied

Dissatisfied

somewhat dissatisfied

very dissatisfied

1 / 8

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Page 45



Q2 Please rate our Assurance risk and Audit officer on the following
attributes

Answered: 1 Skipped: 1

Provided
quality service

Was
understandin...

Approachable

Provided an
Independent...

2 / 8

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Page 46



0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

 
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

 
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

 
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

 
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

 
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

 
1

Very Poor Poor Fair Good Very Good

Communicated
effectively

Professionalism

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 VERY POOR POOR FAIR GOOD VERY GOOD TOTAL

Provided quality service

Was understanding of your challenges and demands

Approachable

Provided an Independent service

Communicated effectively

Professionalism

3 / 8

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Page 47



Q3 How would you rate the below aspects of the audit?
Answered: 1 Skipped: 1

Notice period
given ahead ...

The scope and
objectives o...

Audit ran to
schedule wit...

The draft
report...

4 / 8

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Page 48



0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

 
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
1

5 4 Good Satisfactory Poor

The final
report was...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 5 4 GOOD SATISFACTORY POOR TOTAL

Notice period given ahead of the audit (the brief issued to heads of
service)

The scope and objectives of the audit reflected the areas you
wished to be reviewed

Audit ran to schedule with minimal disruption

The draft report adequately addressed the key issues/risks to the
service

The final report was clear and concise

5 / 8

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Page 49



100.00% 1

0.00% 0

Q4 Do you feel the Audit has added value to your service?
Answered: 1 Skipped: 1

TOTAL 1

Yes

No

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

6 / 8

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Page 50



100.00% 1

0.00% 0

Q5 Do you agree or disagree that the Auditor was knowledgeable and
insightful when making recommendations and providing assurance

around key controls?
Answered: 1 Skipped: 1

TOTAL 1

Agree

Disagree

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Agree

Disagree

7 / 8

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Page 51



Q6 We are continually looking for ways to improve the quality and
delivery of our service. What changes would most improve our service?

Answered: 0 Skipped: 2

8 / 8

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Page 52



Annual Audit Letter
Year ending 31 March 2018

Allerdale Borough Council

August 2018

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 6



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  August 2018 2

Contents

Section Page

1. Executive Summary 3

2. Audit of the Accounts 4

3. Value for Money conclusion 7

Appendices

A  Reports issued and fees 9
Your key Grant Thornton 

team members are:

John Farrar

Associate Director

T: 0161 234 6384 or 07880 456200

E: john.farrar@uk.gt.com

Richard McGahon

Senior Manager

T: 0141 223 0889 or 07880 456156

E: richard.a.mcgahon@uk.gt.com

Richard Anderson

Assistant Manager

T: 0141 223 0753 or  07920 021291

E: richard.j.anderson@uk.gt.com

P
age 54



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  August 2018 3

Executive Summary
Purpose

Our Annual Audit Letter (Letter) summarises the key findings arising from the work that 

we have carried out at Allerdale Borough Council (the Council) and its group undertakings 

for the year ended 31 March 2018. 

This Letter is intended to provide a commentary on the results of our work to the Council, 

group and external stakeholders, and to highlight issues we wish to draw to the attention 

of the public. In preparing this Letter, we have followed the National Audit Office (NAO)'s 

Code of Audit Practice and Auditor Guidance Note (AGN) 07 – 'Auditor Reporting'. We 

reported the detailed findings from our audit work to the Council's Audit Committee as 

those charged with governance in our Audit Findings Report on 27 July 2018.

Respective responsibilities

We have carried out our audit in accordance with the NAO's Code of Audit Practice, which 

reflects the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act). Our key 

responsibilities are to:

• give an opinion on the Council and group’s financial statements (section two)

• assess the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness 

in its use of resources (the value for money conclusion) (section three).

In our audit of the Council and group’s financial statements, we comply with International 

Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs) and other guidance issued by the NAO.

Materiality We determined materiality for the audit of the Council and group’s financial statements to be £966,000, which is 1.75% of the Council's gross 

revenue expenditure. 

Financial Statements opinion We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council and group's financial statements on 31 July 2018. 

Use of statutory powers We did not identify any matters which required us to exercise our additional statutory powers.

Value for Money arrangements We were satisfied that the Council put in place proper arrangements to ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We 

reflected this in our audit report to the Council on 31 July 2018.

Certification of Grants We also carry out work to certify the Council's Housing Benefit subsidy claim on behalf of the Department for Work and Pensions. Our work on 

this claim is not yet complete and will be finalised by 30 November 2018. We will report the results of this work to the Audit Committee in our 

Annual Certification Letter.

Certificate We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Allerdale Borough Council in accordance with the requirements of the Code of 

Audit Practice.

Our work

Working with the Council

During the year we have delivered a number of successful outcomes with you:

• An efficient audit – we delivered an efficient audit with you in June and July, delivering 

the accounts by the accelerated Local Government deadline.

• Sharing our insight – we provided regular audit committee updates covering best 

practice. We also shared our thought leadership reports.

• Providing training – we provided your teams access to a local government financial 

reporting and annual reporting workshop.

We would like to record our appreciation for the assistance and co-operation

provided to us during our audit by the Council's staff.

Grant Thornton UK LLP

August 2018

P
age 55



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  August 2018 4

Audit of the Accounts

Our audit approach

Materiality

In our audit of the Council and group's financial statements, we use the concept of 

materiality to determine the nature, timing and extent of our work, and in evaluating 

the results of our work. We define materiality as the size of the misstatement in the 

financial statements that would lead a reasonably knowledgeable person to change 

or influence their economic decisions. 

We determined materiality for the audit of the Council and group's accounts to be 

£966,000 which is 1.75% of the Council's gross revenue expenditure. We used this 

benchmark as, in our view, users of the Council and group’s financial statements are 

most interested in where the Council has spent its revenue in the year. 

We also set a lower level of specific materiality for senior officer remuneration.

We set a lower threshold of £48,000, above which we reported errors to the Audit 

Committee in our Audit Findings Report.

The scope of our audit

Our audit involves obtaining sufficient evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements to give reasonable assurance that they are free from material 

misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes assessing whether:

• the accounting policies are appropriate, have been consistently applied and adequately 

disclosed; 

• the significant accounting estimates made by management are reasonable; and

• the overall presentation of the financial statements gives a true and fair view. 

We also read the remainder of the Statement of Accounts including the Narrative Report and 

Annual Governance Statement to check they are consistent with our understanding of the 

Council and with the financial statements included in the Statement of Accounts on which we 

gave our opinion.

We carry out our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) and the NAO Code of Audit Practice. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business and is risk 

based. 

We identified key risks and set out overleaf the work we performed in response to these risks 

and the results of this work.

P
age 56



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  August 2018 5

Audit of the Accounts

Significant Audit Risks
These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work. 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Valuation of property, plant and 

equipment (PPE)

The Council revalues its land and 

buildings on a rolling basis over a five 

year period to ensure that carrying value 

is not materially different from fair value. 

This represents a significant estimate by 

management in the financial statements.

We identified the valuation of land and 

buildings revaluations and impairments 

as a risk requiring special audit 

consideration.

As part of our audit work we:

• reviewed management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the 

instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work;   

• considered the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used;  

• discussed with the valuer the basis on which the valuation is carried out and challenged the 

key assumptions;   

• reviewed and challenged the information used by the valuer to ensure it is robust and 

consistent with our understanding;    

• tested revaluations made during the year to ensure they are input correctly into the Council's 

asset register;  

• evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the 

year and how management has satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to 

current value.

Our audit work confirmed that 

revaluations were carried out by an 

appropriate external expert. We were 

satisfied that the value of land and 

buildings not revalued during the year 

was not materially different to their 

reported value at 31 March 2018. No 

issues were found with the revaluation 

of PPE assets and investment 

properties.

Valuation of pension fund net liability

The Council's pension fund asset and 

liability as reflected in its balance sheet 

represent  a significant estimate in the 

financial statements.

We identified the valuation of the pension 

fund net liability as a risk requiring special 

audit consideration.

As part of our audit work we:

• identified the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension fund liability is 

not materially misstated. We have also assessed whether these controls were implemented 

as expected and whether they are sufficient to mitigate the risk of material misstatement;   

• evaluated the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried out your 

pension fund valuation. We have gained an understanding of the basis on which the valuation 

is carried out;    

• undertook procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made;     

• checked the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in notes to the 

financial statements with the actuarial report from your actuary.

Our audit work did not identify any 

issues in respect of the valuation of the 

pension fund net liability. We were 

satisfied that the entries and 

disclosures in the Council’s accounts 

for pension fund assets, liability and 

disclosures in notes were consistent 

with the actuarial report provided by 

Mercers. 

P
age 57



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  August 2018 6

Audit of the Accounts

Audit opinion
We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council and group's financial statements on 

31 July 2018.

Preparation of the accounts

The Council presented us with draft accounts in accordance with the national 

deadline, and provided a good set of working papers to support them. The finance 

team responded promptly and efficiently to our queries during the course of the audit.

Issues arising from the audit of the accounts

We reported the key issues from our audit to the Council's Audit Committee on 27 

July 2018. 

In addition to the key audit risks reported above, management identified, and made, 

three non-material amendments to the final set of accounts. Two of these changes 

were classification adjustments and the other one was simply to provide additional 

disclosure. None of these changes had any impact on the Council’s financial position.

There were no unadjusted misstatements identified during the audit. A small number 

of minor changes were made to the wording and presentation of disclosure notes 

throughout the financial statements to improve their clarity and consistency.

Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report

We are required to review the Council’s Annual Governance Statement and Narrative 

Report. It published them on its website in the Statement of Accounts in line with the 

national deadlines. 

Both were prepared in line with the CIPFA Code and relevant supporting guidance. We 

confirmed that both the Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report were 

consistent with the financial statements prepared by the Council and with our knowledge of 

the Council. 

Other statutory powers 
We also have additional powers and duties under the Act, including powers to issue a 

public interest report, make written recommendations, apply to the Court for a declaration 

that an item of account is contrary to law, and to give electors the opportunity to raise 

questions about the Council's accounts and to raise objections received in relation to the 

accounts. In the period, we have not had to use any of these other powers.

Certificate of closure of the audit
We certified that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Allerdale Borough Council 

in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice on 31 July 2018. 

P
age 58



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  August 2018 7

Value for Money conclusion

Background

We carried out our review in accordance with the NAO Code of Audit Practice, 

following the guidance issued by the NAO in November 2017 which specified the 

criterion for auditors to evaluate:

In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and 

deploys resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and 

local people. 

Key findings

Our first step in carrying out our work was to perform a risk assessment and identify 

the key risks where we concentrated our work.

The key risk we identified and the work we performed is set out overleaf.

Overall Value for Money conclusion

We are satisfied that in all significant respects the Council put in place proper 

arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for 

the year ending 31 March 2018.

P
age 59



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  August 2018 8

Value for Money conclusion

Key Value for Money Risks

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and 

conclusions

Financial sustainability

The Council's Medium Term 

Financial Plan (MTFP) 2017/18 to 

2020/21, produced in February 

2017, showed a £3.1 million funding 

gap between 2018/19 and 2020/21. 

This was in addition to the Council's 

projected delivery of self-sufficiency 

savings of £1.844 million over the 

period of the MTFP. In November 

2017 the Council updated its MTFP 

for 2017/18 to 2020/21 and this 

showed a slight increase in the 

funding gap to £3.28 million for 

2018/19 to 2020/21 and self 

sufficiency savings required still 

being £1.844 million. The Council 

continues to manage its finances 

well, and has consistently achieved 

savings targets and annual 

underspending, so it has not had to 

fully utilise its planned use of 

earmarked reserves. By January 

2018 the Council had identified the 

savings needed to balance the 

2018/19 budget. Even though the 

Council has a good record of 

delivering savings the level of 

savings required over the remaining 

period of the MTFP, on top of self-

sufficiency savings, represents a 

significant challenge.

The Council continues to face financial challenges but the three year Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) 2018/19 to 

2020/21 demonstrates its long term financial viability. Key planning assumptions cover both internal and external factors 

such as, Government funding, pay inflation, non-pay inflation and council tax increases. These assumptions appear 

reasonable, although for non-pay only contractual inflation is included in the budget with no other inflation included as a way 

of driving efficiencies. With inflation currently around 2.5%, and predicted to be around 2% until 2022, this will become 

increasingly challenging, although the Council is currently underspending. Overall, there is a sound process is in place to 

produce the MTFP and update projections. 

The Council set the 2018/19 budget and Council tax requirement on 7 March 2018. This resulted in a balanced net revenue 

budget for 2018/19 of £14.6 million and a Council Tax increase of 3.19%. As part of the annual budget setting process, the 

Council’s s151 officer provides an assessment of the adequacy of balances and reasonableness of assumptions and 

estimates used to produce the budget. The MTFP is reviewed on an ongoing basis with the updated MTFP formally reported 

to members in November 2017 and again in February 2018 as part of the annual Council tax setting process. The MTFP 

projections, reported in February 2018, for 2018/19 to 2020/21 showed a £2.645 million funding gap between 2019/20 and 

2020/21. This is in addition to the Council's projected required delivery of self-sufficiency savings of £0.422 million in 

2018/19. 

When setting the 2017/18 budget in March 2017 the Council identified the need to deliver savings of £1.217 million. The 

required savings are built into the revenue budget and regularly monitored through the normal budget monitoring process 

within the Council. Any issues identified are considered and corrective action taken, or alternative savings are identified. 

Given that the Council level of underspending in 2017/18 it is not unreasonable to assume that the required savings for 

2017/18 have been delivered, although they may have been delivered in a slightly different way to that original planned.

At the end of December 2017 (Quarter 3) the projected overall net revenue outturn position was an underspend of £0.540 

million. The outturn position was an overall net expenditure underspend of £0.758 million. Therefore, a difference of only 

£0.218 million (around 1.2% movement) from that projected at December 2017. At December 2017 net expenditure on 

services was projecting a £0.071 million underspend although outturn showed a £0.566 million underspend a difference of 

£0.495 million (3.4%). This is a significantly reduced difference when compared to the movement between Quarter 3 and 

outturn in 2016/17.

At the 31 March 2018 total available reserves were £8.72 million (GF balance of £4.92 million and Earmarked reserves of 

£3.80 million). When the 2018/19 budget was agreed on 7 March 2018 total reserves were estimated as £8.25 million (GF 

balance of £4.46 million and Earmarked reserves of £3.79 million) but at outturn were actually £8.72 million, an increase of 

£0.47 million. This reflected the underspending in year.

The Council has 

put in place robust 

arrangements to 

monitor and 

update its financial 

plans including the 

delivery of the 

required savings. 

Based on this we 

are able to 

conclude that that 

the Council has in 

place proper 

arrangements for 

ensuring they plan 

finances 

effectively to 

support the 

sustainable 

delivery of 

strategic priorities 

and using 

appropriate cost 

information to 

support informed 

decision making.

P
age 60



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  August 2018 9

A. Reports issued and fees

We confirm below our final reports issued and fees charged for the audit and confirm there were no fees for the provision of non audit services.

The planned fees for the year were in line with the scale fee set by Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited (PSAA). Our fees for grant certification cover only housing benefit 

subsidy certification, which falls under the remit of PSAA Ltd. The planned fee included for 

grant certification is currently an estimate, as we have still to undertake his work.

Reports issued

Report Date issued

Audit Plan 8 February 2018

Audit Findings Report 16 July 2018

Annual Audit Letter August 2018

Fees

Planned

£

Actual fees 

£

2016/17 fees

£

Statutory Council audit 48,128 48,128 48,128

Housing Benefit Grant Certification 14,916 To be confirmed 13,118

Total fees 63,044 To be confirmed 61,246

P
age 61



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  August 2018

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 

firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 

separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 

another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 62



Audit Progress Report and Sector Update
Allerdale Borough Council
Year ending 31 March 2019

September 2018

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 7



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | September 2018

Contents

Section Page

Introduction 3

Progress at September 2018 4

Audit Deliverables 5

Sector Update 6

Links 12

2

P
age 64



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | September 2018

This paper provides the Audit Committee with a report on progress in 
delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors. 
The paper also includes a summary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you as a 
local authority.

Members of the Audit Committee can find further useful material on our website, where we have a section dedicated 
to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications www.grant-thornton.co.uk .

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to 
receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or 
Engagement Manager.

Introduction

3

John Farrar

Engagement Lead

T 0161 234 6384
E John.Farrar@uk.gt.com

Richard McGahon

Engagement Manager

T 0141 223 0889
E Richard.A.Mcgahon@uk.gt.com

P
age 65



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | September 2018

2018/19 Audit
We have begun our planning processes for the 2018/19 
financial year audit. 

Our detailed work and audit visits will begin later in the 
year and we will discuss the timing of these visits with 
management. In the meantime we will:

• continue to hold regular discussions with 
management to inform our risk assessment for the 
2018/19 financial statements and value for money 
audits;

• review minutes and papers from key meetings; and

• continue to review relevant sector updates to ensure 
that we capture any emerging issues and consider 
these as part of audit plans.

Progress at September 2018

4

Other areas
Certification of claims and returns

We are required to certify the Council’s annual Housing 
Benefit Subsidy claim in accordance with procedures 
agreed with the Department for Work and Pensions. 
This certification work for the 2017/18 claim will be 
concluded by November 2018.

The results of the certification work are reported to you 
in our certification letter.

Meetings

We met with Finance Officers throughout the course of 
our audit and continue to be in discussions with finance 
staff regarding emerging developments and to ensure 
the audit process is smooth and effective. We also met 
with your Chief Executive in January 2018 to discuss the 
Council’s strategic priorities and plans.

Events

We provide a range of workshops, along with network 
events for members and publications to support the 
Council. Further details of the publications that may be 
of interest to the Council are set out in our Sector 
Update section of this report.

2017/18 Audit
We have completed our audit of the Council's 
2017/18 financial statements. Our audit opinion, 
including our value for money conclusion and 
certificate of audit closure was issued on the 31 July 
2018. 

We issued:

• An unqualified opinion on the Council’s financial 
statements; and

• An unqualified value for money conclusion on the 
Council’s arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources.

We have issued all our deliverables for 2017/18 and 
have concluded our work on the 2017/18 financial 
year. Our Annual Audit Letter, summarising the 
outcomes of our audit is included as a separate 
agenda item.

P
age 66



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | September 2018

Audit Deliverables

5

2017/18 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Annual Certification Letter

This letter reports any matters arising from our certification work carried out under the PSAA contract.

December 2018 Not yet due

2018/19 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Fee Letter 

Confirming audit fee for 2018/19.

April 2018 Complete

Accounts Audit Plan

We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the Audit Committee setting out our proposed 
approach in order to give an opinion on the Council’s 2018-19 financial statements. We will also report the 
findings of our initial value for money risk assessment.

February 2019 Not yet due

Interim Audit Findings

We will report to you the findings from our interim audit within our Progress Report.

May 2019 Not yet due

Audit Findings Report

The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the July Audit Committee.

July 2019 Not yet due

Auditors Report

This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual governance statement and value for money conclusion.

July 2019 Not yet due

Annual Audit Letter

This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work.

August 2019 Not yet due

P
age 67



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | September 2018

Local government finances are at a tipping point. 
Councils are tackling a continuing drive to 
achieve greater efficiency in the delivery of 
public services, whilst facing the challenges to 
address rising demand, ongoing budget 
pressures and social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date summary of 
emerging national issues and developments to support you. We 
cover areas which may have an impact on your organisation, the 
wider NHS and the public sector as a whole. Links are provided to 
the detailed report/briefing to allow you to delve further and find 
out more. 

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake research 
on service and technical issues. We will bring you the latest 
research publications in this update. We also include areas of 
potential interest to start conversations within the organisation and 
with audit committee members, as well as any accounting and 
regulatory updates. 

Sector Update

6

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and local 
government sections on the Grant Thornton website

• Grant Thornton Publications

• Insights from local  government sector 
specialists

• Reports of interest

• Accounting and regulatory updates

P
age 68



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | September 2018

CIPFA consultation – Financial Resilience Index

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) has consulted on its plans to provide an authoritative 
measure of local authority financial resilience via a new 
index. The index, based on publically available information, 
will provide an assessment of the relative financial health of 
each English council.
CIPFA has designed the index to provide reassurance to councils who are financially stable 
and prompt challenge where it may be needed. To understand the sector’s views, CIPFA 
invited all interested parties to respond to questions it has put forward in the consultation by 
the 24 August.

The decision to develop an index is driven by CIPFA’s desire to support the local 
government sector as it faces a continued financial challenge. The index will not be a 
predictive model but a diagnostic tool – designed to identify those councils displaying 
consistent and comparable features that will highlight good practice, but crucially, also point 
to areas which are associated with financial failure. The information for each council will 
show their relative position to other councils of the same type. Use of the index will support 
councils in identifying areas of weakness and enable them to take action to reduce the risk of 
financial failure. The index will also provide a transparent and independent analysis based 
on a sound evidence base.

The proposed approach draws on CIPFA’s evidence of the factors associated with financial 
stress, including: 

• running down reserves 

• failure to plan and deliver savings in service provision 

• shortening medium-term financial planning horizons 

• gaps in saving plans 

• departments having unplanned overspends and/or undelivered savings.

Conversations with senior practitioners and sector experts have elicited a number of 
additional potential factors, including: 

• the dependency on external central financing 

• the proportion of non-discretionary spending – e.g. social care and capital financing - as a 
proportion of total expenditure 

• an adverse (inadequate) judgement by Ofsted on Children’s services 

• changes in accounting policies (including a change by the council of their minimum 
revenue provision) 

• poor returns on investments 

• low level of confidence in financial management. 

The consultation document proposes scoring six key indicators:

1. The level of total reserves excluding schools and public health as a proportion of net 
revenue expenditure. 

2. The percentage change in reserves, excluding schools and public health, over the past 
three years. 

3. The ratio of government grants to net revenue expenditure. 

4. Proportion of net revenue expenditure accounted for by children’s social care, adult 
social care and debt interest payments. 

5. Ofsted overall rating for children’s social care. 

6. Auditor’s VFM judgement. 

7

P
age 69



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | September 2018

MHCLG – Business rate pilots

The Secretary of State has invited more councils to apply for 
powers to retain the growth in their business rates under the 
new pilots. The pilots will see councils rewarded for 
supporting local firms and local jobs and ensure they benefit 
directly from the proceeds of economic growth.
From April 2019, selected pilot areas will be able to retain 75% of the growth in 
income raised through business rates, incentivising councils to encourage growth in 
business and on the high street in their areas. This will allow money to stay in 
communities and be spent on local priorities - including more funding to support 
frontline services.

This follows the success of previous waves of business rates retention pilots, 
launched in a wide range of areas across country in 2017 and 2018.

The current 50% business rates retention scheme is yielding strong results and in 
2018 to 2019 it is estimated that local authorities will keep around £2.4 billion in 
business rates growth.

Findings from the new round of pilots will help the government understand how local 
authorities can smoothly transition into the proposed system in 2020.

Proposals will need to show how local authorities would ‘pool’ their business rates 
and work collaboratively to promote financial sustainability, growth or a combination 
of these.

Alongside the pilots, the government will continue to work with local authorities, the 
Local Government Association, and others on reform options that give local 
authorities more control over the money they raise and are sustainable in the long 
term.

8

The invitation is addressed to all authorities in England, excluding those with 
ongoing business rates retention pilots in devolution areas and London. Due to 
affordability constraints, it may be necessary to assess applications against 
selection criteria, which will include:

• Proposed pooling arrangements operate across a functional economic area

• Proposal demonstrates how pooled income from growth will be used across the 
pilot area to either boost further growth, promote financial sustainability or a 
combination of these

• Proposal sets out robust governance arrangements for strategic decision-making 
around management of risk and reward and outlines how these support the 
participating authorities’ proposed pooling arrangements

Any proposals will need to show that all participating authorities have agreed to 
become part of the suggested pool and share additional growth as outlined in the 
bid. The Section 151 officer of each authority will need to sign off the proposal 
before submission.

Proposal for new pilots must be received the MHCLG by midnight on Tuesday 25th

September 2018.

P
age 70



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | September 2018

Institute of Fiscal Studies: Impact of ‘Fair 
Funding Review’

The IFS has published a paper that focuses on the issues 
arising in assessing the spending needs of different councils. 
The government’s ‘Fair Funding Review’ is aimed at 
designing a new system for allocating funding between 
councils. It will update and improve methods for estimating 
councils’ differing abilities to raise revenues and their differing 
spending needs. The government is looking for the new 
system to be simple and transparent, but at the same time 
robust and evidence based.
Accounting for councils’ spending needs

The IFS note that the Review is seeking a less subjective and more transparent 
approach which is focused on the relationship between spending and needs 
indicators. However, like any funding system, there will be limitations, for example, 
any attempt to assess needs will be affected by the MHCLG’s funding policies 
adopted in the year of data used to estimate the spending needs formula.  A key 
consideration will be the inherently subjective nature of ‘spending needs’ and ‘needs 
indicators’, and how this will be dealt with under any new funding approach. Whilst 
no assessment of spending needs can be truly objective, the IFS state it can and 
should be evidence based.

The IFS also note that transparency will be critical, particularly in relation to the 
impact that different choices will have for different councils, such as the year of data 
used and the needs indicators selected. These differentiating factors and their 
consequences will need to be understood and debated.

9

Accounting for councils’ revenues 

The biggest source of locally-raised revenue for councils is and will continue to be 
council tax. However, there is significant variation between councils in the amount 
of council tax raised per person. The IFS identify that a key decision for the Fair 
Funding Review is the extent wo which tax bases or actual revenues should be 
used for determining funding levels going forward.

Councils also raise significant sums of money from levying fees and charges, 
although this varies dramatically across the country. The IFS note that it is difficult 
to take account of these differences in a new funding system as there is no well-
defined measure of revenue raising capacity from sales, fees and charges, unlike 
council tax where the tax base can be used.

The overall system: redistribution, incentives 
and transparency

The IFS also identify that an important policy 
decision for the new system is the extent to which it 
prioritises redistribution between councils, compared 
to financial incentives for councils to improve their 
own socio-economic lot. A system that fully and 
immediately equalises for differences in assessed 
spending needs and revenue-raising capacity will 
help ensure different councils can provide similar 
standards of public services, However, it would 
provide little financial incentive for councils to tackle 
the drivers of spending needs and boost local 
economics and tax bases. 

Further detail on the impact of the fair funding review 
can be found in the full report 
https://www.ifs.org.uk/uploads/publications/comms/R
148.pdf.

P
age 71



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | September 2018

The Vibrant Economy Index
a new way to measure success

Places are complex and have an intrinsic impact on the people and businesses within them. 
Economic growth doesn’t influence all of the elements that are important to people’s lives –
so we shouldn’t use GDP to measure success. We set out to create another measure for 
understanding what makes a place successful. 

In total, we look at 324 English local authority areas, taking into account not only economic 
prosperity but health and happiness, inclusion and equality, environmental resilience, 
community and dynamism and opportunity. Highlights of the index include:

• Traditional measures of success – gross value added (GVA), average workplace earning 
and employment do not correlate in any significant way with the other baskets. This is 
particularly apparent in cities, which despite significant economic strengths are often 
characterised by substantial deprivation and low aspiration, high numbers of long-term 
unemployment and high numbers of benefit claimants

• The importance of the relationships between different places and the subsequent role of 
infrastructure in connecting places and facilitating choice. The reality is that patterns of 
travel for work, study and leisure don’t reflect administrative boundaries. Patterns emerge 
where prosperous and dynamic areas are surrounded by more inclusive and healthy and 
happy places, as people choose where they live and travel to work in prosperous areas.

• The challenges facing leaders across the public, private and third sector in how to 
support those places that perform less well. No one organisation can address this on 
their own. Collaboration is key.

Visit our website (www.grantthornton.co.uk) to explore the interactive map, read case studies 
and opinion pieces, and download our report Vibrant Economy Index: Building a better 
economy.

Vibrant Economy app
To support local collaboration, we have also developed a Vibrant Economy app. It's been 
designed to help broaden understanding of the elements of a vibrant economy and 
encourage the sharing of new ideas for – and existing stories of – local vibrancy. 

We’ve developed the app to help people and organisations:

• see how their place performs against the index and the views of others through an 
interactive quiz

• post ideas and share examples of local activities that make places more vibrant

• access insights from Grant Thornton on a vibrant economy.

We're inviting councils to share it with their employees and the wider community to 
download. We can provide supporting collateral for internal communications on launch and 
anonymised reporting of your employees' views to contribute to your thinking and response.

10

To download the app visit your app store and search 'Vibrant Economy‘
• Fill in your details to sign up, and wait for the verification email (check 

your spam folder if you don't see it)
• Explore the app and take the quiz
• Go to the Vibrant Ideas section to share your picture and story or idea

Our Vibrant Economy Index uses data to provide a robust, independent framework to help everyone understand the 
challenges and opportunities in their local areas. We want to start a debate about what type of economy we want to build 
in the UK and spark collaboration between citizens, businesses and place-shapers to make their places thrive.

P
age 72



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | September 2018

Supply Chain Insights tool helps support supply 
chain assurance in public services

Grant Thornton UK LLP has launched a new insights and 
benchmarking platform to support supply chain assurance 
and competitor intelligence in public services. 
The Supply Chain Insights service is designed for use by financial directors and procurement 
professionals in the public sector, and market leaders in private sector suppliers to the public 
sector. It provides users with a detailed picture of contract value and spend with their supply 
chain members across the public sector. The analysis also provides a robust and granular 
view on the viability, sustainability, market position and coverage of their key suppliers and 
competitors.

The platform is built on aggregated data from 96 million invoices and covers £0.5 trillion of 
spending.  The data is supplemented with financial standing data and indicators to give a 
fully rounded view. The service is supported by a dedicated team of analysts and is available 
to access directly as an on-line platform.

Phillip Woolley, Partner, Grant Thornton UK LLP, said: 

"The fall-out from the recent failure of Carillion has highlighted the urgent need for robust and 
ongoing supply chain monitoring and assurance.  Supply Chain Insights provides a clear 
picture of your suppliers’ activities across the sector, allowing you to understand risks, 
capacity and track-record.  We think it’s an indispensable resource in today’s supplier 
market." 

The tool enables you to immediately:

• access over 96 million transactions that are continually added to

• segment invoices by:
o organisation and category 
o service provider 
o date at a monthly level 

• benchmark your spend against your peers
• identify:
o organisations buying similar services 
o differences in pricing  
o the leading supplier

• see how important each buyer is to a supplier
• benchmark public sector organisations’ spend on a consistent basis
• see how much public sector organisations spend with different suppliers

Supply Chain Insights forms part of the Grant Thornton Public Sector Insight Studio portfolio 
of analytics platforms.

Click on Supply Chain Insights for more information.

11

P
age 73



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | September 2018

Grant Thornton website links

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/industries/publicsector

National Audit Office link 

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-health-and-social-care-interface/

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government links

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728722/BRR_Pilots_19-20_Prospectus.pdf

Institute for Fiscal Studies

https://www.ifs.org.uk/uploads/publications/comms/R148.pdf

12

Links

P
age 74



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement 
and signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly 
for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 75



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 76


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	5 Internal Audit report Quarter One 2018/19
	Appendix A for Internal Audit report Quarter One 2018/19
	Appendix B for Internal Audit report Quarter One 2018/19
	Q1 How would you rate your overall satisfaction with us?
	Q2 Please rate our Assurance risk and Audit€officer on the following attributes
	Q3 How would you rate the below aspects of the audit?
	Q4 Do you feel the Audit has added value to your service?
	Q5 Do you agree or disagree that the Auditor was knowledgeable and insightful when making recommendations and providing assurance around key controls?
	Q6 We are continually looking for ways to improve the quality€and delivery of our service. What changes would most improve our service?


	6 Annual Audit Letter 2017/18
	7 Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

